UNITED
NATIONS C R C

Convention on the paa
Rights of the Child CRC O/ SR 364

23 January 1997

Oiginal: ENGISH

COMM TTEE ON THE RIGHTS COF THE CH LD
Fourteent h session
SUWARY RECCRD OF THE 364t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Ceneva,
on Monday, 20 January 1997, at 3 p.m

Chai rperson : Ms. BELEMBAOXO

CONTENTS
CONSI DERATI ON OF REPCRTS CF STATES PARTES ( conti nued )

Initial report of New Zeal and (continued)

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submtted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a menmorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Pal ais des Nations, Geneva.

Any corrections to the records of the neetings of the Committee at this
session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued shortly
after the end of the session.

GE. 97-15283 (E)



CRC/ U SR 364
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 3.05 p.m

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS COF STATES PARTI ES (agenda item4) ( conti nued)

Initial report of New Zeal and (continued) (CRC 28/ Add. 3; HR/CORE 1/ Add. 33;
CROCQ@NzZL. 1 (list of issues); witten replies by the Governnent of
New Zeal and wi th no docunent synbol, in English)

1. At the invitation of the Chairperson, the New Zeal and del egati on resuned

its place at the Conmittee table

2. The CHAIRPERSON invited the New Zeal and del egation to reply to the
guestions not answered at the previous neeting.

3. Ms. ARNOLD (New Zeal and) said that Te Puni Kokiri (Mnistry of Maori
Devel opnent) enpl oyed 267 staff nenbers in its five branches, with a further
55 peopl e working for the Maori Trust O fice, which adm nistered Maori |and,
property and client accounts. O the staff nenbers, 72 per cent were of Maori
descent, 54.2 per cent were wonen and the average age was 37. The role of the
Mnistry was to nonitor the policies of the nainstream agenci es and assess
their inpact on the Maori popul ation, including Miori children. The Mnistry
wor ked side by side with the mai nstream agenci es during the devel oprment of
policies, as well as nonitoring their inplenentation and their conpliance with
the Treaty of Waitangi.

4, Repl yi ng to questions regardi ng the current conposition of Parlianent,
she said there were currently 30 fermale and 14 Maori menbers of Parlianment, as
opposed to 20 and 6 respectively the previous year.

5. Ms. G BSON (New Zeal and), replying to questions regarding privatization,
said that a good proportion of the popul ation in New Zeal and had been affected
by the recent changes to the econony and the public sector. 1t could not be

deni ed, however, that the reforns had i nproved the overall econonic situation
by creating enploynment and | owering inflation and debt |evels. As a result,
the Government had been able to spend nore on social objectives, as was shown
by the current 1996/ 97 budget and the statenent of intent by the coalition
Covernnent that such trends were likely to continue

6. The Government had not privatized the entire public sector but had
retained control of services in certain inportant areas such as enpl oynent and
social welfare. 1t had spun off services in other areas where private
agenci es had been shown to operate nore effectively. 1In such cases, there
wer e adequate safeguards to ensure that the government intent was fulfilled
i ncl udi ng cl ear specifications, binding contracts between the subcontractors
and the governnment agency concerned and eval uati on processes. Moreover, the
CGovernnent was ultimately accountabl e for the provision of such services.
Non- gover nnent al organi zati ons (NG3s) mght al so act as subcontractors. The
subcontracti ng system had been devel oped to ensure the provision of adequate
servi ces.

7. As for education, the Government had stated categorically that it did
not intend to privatize schools. The bul k-fundi ng systemwas viewed as a
nmeans of enabling schools to take decisions affecting their work w thout



CRC T SR 364
page 3

having to go through a central agency that was not necessarily famliar with
their particular problens. A nunber of schools seened perfectly happy to
operate under that system There was an ongoi ng eval uation process of the
system w th progress reports prepared at regul ar intervals.

8. Inreply to questions relating to the dissem nation of the Convention
she said that the text of the Convention had been distributed to all school s
in New Zeal and. There had al so been a poster conpetition for school chil dren
and, since ratification of the Convention, the w nning poster appeared on al
official docurments in New Zeal and relating to the instrument. Copies of the
Convention in sinple English and in Maori were al so avail abl e.

9. New Zeal and' s ratification of the Conventi on had been the subject of a
great deal of controversy, since parents had feared an infringenent of their
rights. Those fears appeared to have | essened, however, given the
Covernnent's enphasis on article 5 of the Convention, which stipulated that
States parties should respect the responsibilities, rights and duties of
parents.

10. There were various means of pronoting tol erance and understanding in the
school s, through, for exanple, the teaching of social studies, which dealt

wi th subjects such as good nei ghbourly relations and the pronotion of the
understanding of different cultures. A docunent had al so been produced by the
Mnistry of Education with a view to pronoting good race relations in the
schools. There was, in fact, a wide range of resources available to pronote
tol erance in the school system although the decision which resources should
be used, was at the discretion of the individual school.

11. M. ANGUS (New Zeal and), replying to questions concerning the targeted
approach to social welfare services, said that New Zeal and had traditionally
provi ded universal health care and education for children as well as targeted
i ncone-support measures based on needs and funded by fiscal revenue. The aim
of recent refornms was to increase the targeted approach; it had not been
introduced as an alternative to the type of insurance-based social -security
systens used in other countries.

12. Informati on on the social services avail able was provi ded through
advertising and nodern technol ogy, such as the freephone infornation service
for people on incone support. Qeater access to social services was ensured
by new net hods of delivery, including nei ghbourhood-based “fam |y service
centres” and home visiting services.

13. In order to |l essen the stigma of resorting to certain services, efforts
were constantly being nade to inprove their quality and enphasis was pl aced on
providing services geared to suit the needs of particular social and ethnic
groups. A further initiative was the use of NG0s, which were found to be nore
acceptable to the general public for the provision of certain social and
child-protection services. Services dealing with nany of the probl ens

hi ghlighted in the Convention such as child abuse and juvenil e delinquency
were available to all on the basis of need and were in no way incomne-rel ated.



CRC C SR 364
page 4

14, He had no ready answer concerning the equitable distribution of targeted
and uni versal services. An effort was nade in New Zeal and to strike a bal ance
bet ween services ained at protecting children fromharmand those dealing with
the harmwhen it arose. A further considerati on was of course the bal ance of
expenditure, a question that was constantly under review

15. Answering questions relating to the absence of an official poverty line,
he said that, apart fromsone individuals in very exceptional circunstances
there was no absol ute poverty in New Zeal and. There had been nuch debate on
the subject of late, mainly through pressure from NGO that were in favour of
an official poverty line, but no firmconclusions had yet been reached. Data
avai l abl e on the econom c circunstances of New Zeal and famlies were taken
into account in the policy-devel opnent process despite the absence of an
official poverty |ine.

16. The Government had taken a nunber of steps to address the effects of the
econom ¢ hardship resulting fromrecent reforms, by increasing social services
expendi ture, including inconme support and rental subsidies. |n assessing

those hit hardest by the economc reforns and thus nost in need of assistance
information relating to househol d i ncome produced by the New Zeal and
statistics departnent had been used the concern voiced by the NGO community
had been heeded.

17. The position of his Covernnent regarding the el aboration of a nationa
pl an of action for children, in response to the World Sutmmit for Children

renmai ned unchanged; since it considered that the issues concerned were already
covered by specific programmes to i nprove the general welfare of children.
Thus, for instance, initiatives in the area of children's health included a
national plan of action for nutrition, a canpaign to prevent young people from
snoking, |egislation making it conpul sory for children to wear seat belts and
a national strategy for the prevention of youth suicide.

18. New | egi sl ati on on donestic viol ence had been introduced, which
recommrended that the inpact of violence on children should be taken into
account in decisions affecting them such as in the courts of law The
Governnent had al so | aunched a policy initiative to strengthen the role of the
famly, involving a broad spectrum of government agencies and constituting an
excel | ent exanpl e of inter-agency coordination. It was based on the idea that
the soci alization and devel opment of children was the primary responsibility
of parents.

19. As part of the policy-devel opment process, a nunber of goals had been
set for the education, health and wel fare of children and net hods were being
devised to nonitor progress in attaining those goals. The coalition
CGovernnent had al so decided to al |l ocate consi derabl e resources for services to
famlies with children under the age of eight or children in particul ar need.
Truancy and after-school care were other issues being tackled.

20. A national plan of action would certainly bring such efforts together
and the Government's earlier decision in that regard mght well be reviewed in
the future



CRC T SR 364
page 5

21. A shift in focus froma welfare-oriented approach to one which

enphasi zed children's rights was not currently a matter of particular concern
to social workers in New Zeal and, who had neverthel ess been instrumental in
introducing a juvenile justice systempaying greater attention to due process
than the previ ous one.

22. He was able to provide figures only for the nunber of social workers in
the Children and Young Persons Service. The additional $11 mllion nade
available in the current fiscal year had resulted in the recruitnent of sone
50 to 60 new soci al workers, out of a total of about 1,200, and his Governnent
woul d certainly consider the possibility of allocating nore resources to that
Servi ce.

23. Children under the age of 10 bore no crimnal responsibility. Between
the ages of 10 and 13 they could be charged and prosecuted only for rmurder or
mansl aughter. |If found guilty, they served their sentences in social welfare

residences up to the age of 17.

24, Between the ages of 14 and 16 inclusive, children charged wth offences
were dealt with under a separate jurisdiction, details of which were set out
in chapter VI11, section B, of the initial report. Children passing through

the youth justice systemcould be sentenced to a termof up to three nonths in
a residence (the third nmonth commonly being remtted). Those sentenced for
serious offences could, in due course, be transferred to the adult system but
no young person could be sentenced to the “preventive detention” (life

i mprisonnent) to which some adult offenders were liable.

25. M. LISTER (New Zealand) said that the Conmmttee's comments regarding
the possibility of inproving coordination of information and data collection
were acknow edged in the witten response to issue No. 3. Key infornation
woul d becomne available with the release of the results of the 1996 five-yearly
census in early 1997. As in the past, Statistics New Zeal and and the Mnistry
of Youth Affairs would produce three publications based on the census, dealing
respectively with children, famlies and young peopl e aged 15 to 25 and
containing trend data for the 10-15 year period. Wth the new technol ogy
avail able, it should be possible to produce statistics for children

between 0 and 18.

26. Ohe aimof the reforns had been to shift the focus of reporting and
eval uation fromquantification of human and financial inputs towards outputs
and outcones, a shift that woul d nake the eval uation of accountability and
strategic results nore conprehensive.

27. A di scussion group conprising representatives of all the social agencies
and Statistics New Zeal and was attenpting to i nprove inter-agency coordination
of data and census information. A conprehensive disability survey carried out
followi ng the 1996 census would make it possible to identify the percentage of
di sabl ed children receiving the services to which they were entitled.

28. There was a new requi rement that any policy initiative put to the

Cabi net nust include funding provisions for nonitoring and eval uation. The
Mnistry of Youth Affairs had included aspects of the Convention such as the
best interests of the child inits policy output to the Cabinet Committee



CRC T SR 364
page 6

process. Lastly, though it was nore specifically responsible for nonitoring
outcones for the 12 to 25 age group, the Mnistry also engaged in “early
preventi on” exercises for children aged 0 to 12.

29. New Zeal and's rate of youth suicide was one of the highest reported, but
it should be realized that, in 1991, the latest year for which figures were
avail able, only 36 out of 166 States Menbers of the United Nations had
reported suicide data. Between 1985 and 1990, the rate anong nal es

aged 15 to 24 had doubled and the rate anong Maori nal es appeared to have

nore than doubled. Since 1990, the rate had stabilized at 120 to 130. More
than two thirds of those in the 15 to 24 age group who commtted suicide were
over 20 years of age.

30. No research had yet been able to pinpoint the causes of youth suicide
hence it was difficult to inplenent preventive programes. R sk groups

i ncl uded those who had already attenpted suicide, and children w th poor
parental care and unhappy famly circunstances. Sexual abuse and bul | ying
m ght al so be relevant factors and there could be correlations with | ack of
formal educational qualifications, |owincomes, residential nobility,

psychi atri c di sorders, alcohol and drug abuse and anti soci al behavi our.

31. It was suspected that Maori youths were nmore at risk than non-Maoris.
Young fermal es were nmore likely than young males to attenpt suicide, but young
mal es were nore likely to succeed in the attenpt.

32. Though they had not yet becone governnent policy, five focuses for
future action had been proposed. They were: inproved research into causes;
reduction of vulnerability through early prevention and pronotion of
children's well-being; inproved interventions for those exhibiting potentially
sui ci dal behavi our; support for those who had al ready attenpted suicide; and
support for those bereaved or affected by suicide.

33. The Human R ghts Act protected persons over the age of 16 from

di scrimnati on on age grounds, but the Covernment had been exenpted from nmany
of its provisions until 1999. The Consistency 2000 Project was exam ning al

| egi slation, policies and programmes to ensure consistency with that Act.

34. Regarding the possibility of obtaining better information concerning
expendi ture on young people, he stressed that the effectiveness of services
shoul d not be neasured solely on the basis of the amount of noney spent. The
Mnistry of Youth Affairs had just piloted an exercise to encourage gover nment
departnents to provide infornmation on their allocation of expenditures and
outputs to popul ati on subgroups aged 12 to 25, an exercise that could be
extended to the O to 18 age group.

35. The CHAIRPERSON invited the Conmittee to ask questions about the
sections of the report entitled “General principles” and “Gvil rights and
freedons”.

36. Ms. EUFEM O said that the failure to provide for a nini mumwage for
young people could result in discrimnation. She would like to know how youth
wages conpared with those of adults.




CRC/ U SR 364
page 7

37. Wth regard to respect for the views of the child, the provision naking
it mandatory for the Famly Court to ascertain the wishes of the child was
allegedly of limted effectiveness because the vast najority of custody,
access and guardi anshi p cases were resol ved by conciliation and because the
child had to be represented by counsel, who sonetinmes nade reconmmendati ons
contrary to the child' s express w shes.

38. She woul d |i ke to know whet her the Quardi anshi p Act 1968 had been
amended to allow children to apply for access to an absent parent, and to
cover situations in which parents or children were unwilling to undertake
visits. There was no nmandatory requirenment for children's views to be heard
in property and financial disputes; nor was there any nention of the child's
vi ews regardi ng deci si ons concerni ng mai ntenance in the Child Support

Act 1991. The Family Proceedi ngs Act 1980 apparently did not expressly
requi re account to be taken of the child' s opinion. Lastly, the Education
Act 1989 had been anended to all ow boards to di spense w th student
participation or representati on when consi dering cases of suspension or
expul si on

39. Ms. SARDENBERG said she would like nore detailed infornation concerning
girls inrural areas. Wre there disparities between the situations of boys
and of girls in natters such as school enrol ment and career opportunities? 1In
view of the delegation's earlier comment regarding the age-group w th which

the Mnistry of Youth Affairs was mandated to deal, she asked whet her

consi deration had been given to unifying responsibility for children of al

ages under a new Mnistry of Children and Youth Affairs.

40. M. HAMVARBERG said that the New Zeal and CGovernnent appeared to have
achieved a near-mracle in surnounting a severe econonmc crisis and inproving
services in the process. It would be instructive to | earn whether, in shaping
its future policies, it had been faced with dil emmas other than those it had
di scussed with the Commttee. It was not clear whether any conprehensive
assessnent had been nmade of the inpact of the years of econom c reformon
children generally, and on disparities between subgroups within the child
popul ati on.

41. Every Government woul d benefit from conparing internationally agreed
targets with its own performance. International mneetings and agreenents
shoul d not single out the poorer countries; well-resourced countries such as
New Zeal and nmust participate actively in followup to such neetings and assi st
the poorer countries in inplementing refornms. |t would thus be interesting to
learn to what extent New Zeal and's overseas aid programme was oriented towards
children.

42. He found the Children, Young Persons and Their Famlies Act 1989
interesting in that it went further than the Convention in making the notion
of the best interests of the child the first and paranount consideration in
deci sion-making. Did New Zeal and apply that concept also in cases where the
interests of children as a group might conflict with those of adults or with
the national interests?



CRC T SR 364
page 8

43. Inrelation to article 12 of the Convention, he had noted with interest
the establishnent of a Youth Parlianent which could well develop into an
inportant institution. However, it seemed that the provision on the
obligatory representation of children on school boards of trustees was no
longer in force. He wondered whether any other neasures had been introduced
inits place.

44, M. MOMBESHORA said it was unlikely that New Zeal and’s new nmental health
policy would deal fully with the problemof suicide. The underlying causes
needed to be fully understood before it would beconme clear howto deal with
that serious problem

45, Al though it seemed that every effort was being nade to elininate
di scri mnation, sonme of the |ess obvious areas where discrimnation m ght
exi st shoul d be consi dered.

46. Ms. KARP asked what neasures were being taken to deal with

di scrimnation agai nst indi genous peoples, particularly the Maoris, resulting
fromhistorical factors and attitudes. That was a particularly rel evant
qguestion in that there was a feeling that Governnment policies threatened to
integrate the Maoris into the mainstreamculture and dilute the
characteristics of the Maori way of life. Simlarly, she wondered whether the
di vi ded opi ni ons on how to approach Maori problens were affecting attenpts to
nmake servi ces nore accessible to them and would |ike to know how NMaoris were
i nvol ved in decisions on the devel opment of health and education services.

She al so asked whet her the Maori popul ati on was represented or consulted in
the process of devising the conditions service-providers were supposed to neet
as services were privatized.

47. It was not conpletely clear whether the bookl et published to dissem nate
the Convention in the English and Maori | anguages was for sale or whether it
was distributed free of charge to the Maori population. Ddit exist in the
Paci fic Island | anguage?

48. Further clarification would be wel come on training, not just for socia
wor kers, but also for other professional groups that worked with children
particularly Maori children.

49. dven the nature of New Zeal and soci ety, she asked about the status of
the child in the framework of pronoting the role of the famly, its
responsibility and authority and whet her the general public accepted the new
vision in the Convention of the child as a partner in the famly who nust be
invol ved in decisions with a direct inpact on his or her life. Simlarly,
were there training programmes to hel p professionals that worked with children
to understand the new concept of child participation?

50. Ms. BADRAN said that there was usually nore than one vari abl e that
contributed to a person wishing to commt suicide. Fromthe nunber of cases
in New Zealand, it should be possible to isolate the nost significant
contributory factors.



CRC T SR 364
page 9

51. She asked whether, with the introduction of private schools, a two-tier
systemwoul d arise, to the benefit of children whose famlies could afford to
take themout of the State education system and if so, how that woul d af fect
a child s choices, particularly in terns of enploynent.

52. Al t hough the Youth Parlianent was a comrendabl e concept, it was not
clear whether it was nerely a tenporary exercise or whether there were other
per manent nechani snms to ensure that children were given the opportunity to
taste denocracy and participate in matters that affected them Further
informati on on other areas where children’ s participation was assured, in
political parties for exanple, should be provided.

53. Mss MASON said that, under the Convention, a child had the right not to
be subjected to torture or other cruel, inhuman or degrading treatnent or

puni shnent. That concept covered not only a child s treatnment at the hands of
an adult but also one child s treatnment of another. Bullying - which appeared
to be a major concern in New Zeal and - shoul d be considered fromthat angle.
Children tended to learn nore rapidly and easily fromtheir peers and there

was much to be said for finding ways of bringing peer pressure to bear to

stanp out bullying and pronote nmutual respect anong children. 1t would be
interesting to knowif the research into bullying had been informative and had
led to any practical neasures that could be used in the New Zeal and school s.

The neeting was suspended at 4.45 p.m_ and resuned at 5 p. m

54. Ms. G BSON (New Zeal and) thanked the nmenbers of the Conmttee for their
val uabl e contributions on the subject of suicide. Mre tine was needed to be
able to answer several of the questions raised during the debate, particularly
those relating to aspects of |egislation.

55. Te Puni Kokiri (Mnistry of Maori Devel opnent) consistently consulted
with the Maori popul ati on on policy questions.

56. A review of the careers service had | ooked into how rmuch informati on was
avail able in schools to hel p young persons make inforned career choices. It
had al so shown that young persons in rural areas felt that they were well
catered for in terns of being able to make choices on further education and
training.

57. Al though it was no | onger compul sory for schools to include a student
representative on their board of trustees, nost educati onal establishnents had
chosen to continue the practice of their own accord

58. M. ANGUS (New Zeal and) said that there was no probl em concerni ng
soci al -wor ker coverage of rural areas.

59. There had been no intention to inply that the CGovernnent reduction in
expenditure as part of its efforts to nmeet fiscal and | egislative goals had
not had an adverse effect on sectors of society. The Government had had to
address the problemand was dealing with it as part of its ongoing concern
over the situation of children. Long-termstudies had been carried out into



CRC T SR 364
page 10

the effects on children of disrupted famly structures, a famly's long-term
dependency on incone support and other social ills, and the infornation was
bei ng used as a focus for action

60. There were no conprehensive studies on economc reformand its inpact on
children. However, reports on the inpact of policies on children would be
produced to cover areas of relevance to the rights of the child, though they
woul d not necessarily cover all econom c and social policy initiatives.

61. New Zeal and’s O ficial Devel opnent Assistance (ODA) was targeted towards
pronoti ng sustai nabl e econom ¢ and soci al progress and justice by inproving
the ability of devel oping countries to raise and sustain |iving standards,

i ncl udi ng those of their children. New Zeal and al so funded speci al educati on
projects and did its best to encourage voluntary contributions to

i nternational devel opnent and hunanitari an agenci es whose spheres of activity
related to children

62. The paranmountcy of the interests of the child, which was set out in the
Children, Young Persons and Their Famlies Act 1989, was applied on a
case- by-case basi s.

63. As for the questions raised by Ms. Karp, it was the experience of
social workers that a child could not be considered in isolation fromhis or
her famly. That had been one of the underlying prem ses of the Children,
Young Persons and Their Famly Act. The interests of the child as a
participating menber of a famly were inportant in any decisions on placenent,
custody, care and protection, for exanple. The safeguards that needed to be
in place to underpin the paranmountcy of the child had been strengthened by
amendnents to New Zeal and' s | egi sl ation

64. Fam |y nmenbers were educated regarding the participation of children in
the framework of general parent-support initiatives financed and pronoted by
the Government. They enphasized the right of the child to live free from
violence and the role parents could play in encouraging the child's

devel opnent .

65. As for training professional workers in the concept of the child as a
partner, he said that the child was seen as part of a famly and involved in
fam |y decision-nmaking. Professionals working with children still had room

for inprovenent in terns of finding a bal ance between the wi shes of the child
and what they thought to be the best solution

66. M. LISTER (New Zeal and) said that there was a m ni numwage rate for
young persons aged between 16 and 19. The Covernnent intended to reviewthe
m ni mum age rate for persons under 20 years of age

67. In the Quardi anship Act 1968, for exanple, the best interests of the
child were paranmount, as they were in the Adoption Act 1995.

68. Programmes to stanp out bullying were available for the schools. There
was no information on how wi despread the programmes invol ving young people to
convince their peers of the ills of bullying were, but they certainly did

exi st.



CRC T SR 364
page 11

69. Ms. G BSON (New Zeal and) said that the bookl et she had shown to the
Conmittee was an exanple of a resource for the pronotion of tolerance. It had
been produced jointly by the Ofice of the Race Relations Conciliator and the
M nistries of Education and Maori Devel opnment as a tool for the pronotion of a

climate of tolerance between races. It was not concerned with bullying as
such.
70. In her answer regarding peer pressure, she had referred to a video

produced by the police and other agencies to encourage the attitude that
bul I yi ng was not acceptable. A range of such resources was available to
persons in a position to influence behaviour in schools. They were used in

di scussions where children could | earn fromthe comments by their peers. A
nunmber of peer-support programmes were operating in the schools, but they were
not conpul sory

71. The Government did not intend to privatize the education system There
were only about 150 truly private schools in New Zeal and out of a total of
sone 3,000. There were nmany “integrated schools” - a systemwhich all owed

parents to send their children to one of a range of State schools at a | ow
cost. A programre had been introduced under which children could apply for
free places in private schools, following a United States nodel intended
largely for black children. Oficial education standards in New Zeal and were
the same for all types of school

72. The Youth Parlianent had not yet been established on a regul ar basis.
The first had been held in 1994 and had been so successful that the CGovernnent
had decided to nmake it a triennial event. The level of enthusiasm was
overwhelmng. The intention was to allow as many children as possible to
participate in activities connected with the Parlianment. At the |ocal |evel,
children elected their representatives to attend Parlianent for a two-day
session in which the parlianmentary press gallery and young journalists were

i nvol ved. The CGovernnent was | ooki ng at ways of pronoting the Convention
through the Youth Parlianment. It was envisaged that schools would be able to
use Youth Parliament materials in their programmes.

73. M. LISTER (New Zeal and), said that there was one piece of research on
child suicide: the profiling of 129 young people who had tried to kil

thensel ves. There was al so a proposal for a |larger study of a group of young
peopl e hospitalized as a result of suicide attenpts

74. Ms. KARP, reverting to her question about the status of children in the
famly, said that the phil osophy of the Convention was that the famly

provi ded the best environment for raising children and that the famly bore

the primary responsibility in that regard. Wat she had wanted to know was
whet her a child was considered nore as a famly nenber needing protection and
care than as a nenber with a separate identity. She also wanted to know how
New Zeal and ensured that the best interests of the child were a prinmary
consideration in the event of conflict between children and parents. It

seened, for exanple, that children were not separately represented in the
famly group conferences referred to in the witten replies.



CRC C SR 364
page 12

75. M. KOOSOV said that he was glad to hear that the Youth Parliament was
to be held every three years. However, there was a poorer country that held
such a parlianent on an annual basis and mai ntained | ocal committees in
constant session. Perhaps the next New Zeal and del egation to the Commttee

m ght include sonme nenbers of the Youth Parlianent.

76. Wth regard to the right to receive and inpart information, he noted
that New Zeal and was |located in a renote corner of the world and that not many
New Zeal and children travelled as tourists in, for exanple, Europe. 1In the

ci rcunstances, he would like to know what was bei ng done to acquaint children
with different cultures

77. M. HAMVARBERG said that he wel comed the infornation concerning the
prohi bition of the production or possession of pornographic materials

i nvol ving children. He wondered, however, whether the New Zeal and syst em of
cl assi fying pornography into several categories was easy to apply, for
exanpl e, to video shops. The New Zeal and neasures were mainly of the
censorship type, which did not always provide a full answer to the problem

G her strategi es mght be needed, including the education of children and
parents in the proper use of the nass nedia: the lack of parental supervision
of television watching, seened a major problem Had New Zeal and tried to
devel op a conprehensive strategy to cope with viol ence and pornography in the
nmedi a?

78. Wiile it was good that corporal punishment was banned in all schools,
the worst abuse often took place in the famly. Conpliance with article 19 of
the Convention so as to prevent all forns of abuse woul d, however, require
sone very strong legislation. New Zealand |egislation allowed a degree of

vi ol ence regarded as reasonable in the circunstances. The risk of that
approach was that it was arbitrary and i ntroduced the notion that violence
agai nst children mght be pernmssible in sone situations. The Committee,

whi ch understood that the Comm ssioner for Children had requested a revi ew of
the legislation to bring New Zealand into line with the countries that had
deci ded that viol ence against children was not pernmitted in any circunstances,
felt it essential that there should be strong legislation in line with
article 19.

79. Ms. SARDENBERG said that, while she was grateful for the answer about
girls and discrimnation, she would |ike to know whet her there were any
separate data on Maori girls which indicated an equally positive picture. She
woul d al so wel cone nore information about the participation of children,
particularly in the Board of Trustees of their school when suspension was
under discussion. It seemed that the Education Act had originally provided
for such participation which had been term nated by an anendnent. She would
also like to know why the Ofice of the Race Relations Conciliator had been
establ i shed and what its mandate was. WAs the problemone of racial tensions
in the schools or in society at |arge?

80. Mss MASON said that the drafters of the Conventi on had made the best
interests of the child “a” rather than “the” primary considerati on because
they recogni zed that there mght be circunstances in which it was not the only
consi deration. However, they had clearly believed that the care and
protection of the child should be given priority wherever possible. She



CRC T SR 364
page 13

referred, that in connection, to the New Zeal and arrangenents for the

i nprisonment of children with their convicted nothers. She presuned that
those arrangenents were regarded as being in the best interests of the child
on the basis that it was better for younger children to live in prison with
their mothers than in the care of strangers, but would |ike to know what
criteria were used.

81. Incest, like child suicide, appeared to be a taboo subject in

New Zeal and society. It would be hel pful to know what its incidence was and
whet her any research had been carried out into the subject, in particular
concer ni ng what subsequently happened to the child victins. It had been

suggested that nost prostitutes had been involved in childhood incestuous
rel ati onshi ps.

82. She woul d also |ike to know how New Zeal and ensured that the child
victinms of sexual abuse were protected agai nst further incidents, especially
in view of the statenent in paragraph 386 of the report that there was some
shortage of appropriate services. Wuld it be possible to revive the
apparently defunct conpensation schene for victins of sexual abuse and, if so,
how woul d the authorities deci de who shoul d be conpensated? Wre the payments
to be regarded as conpensation for the harmdone or as pay-outs for failure to
prosecute the offenders? 1In particular, she woul d wel cone information on the
extent to which the child victins of sexual abuse were brought into any

di scussi ons on conpensati on.

83. Ms. G BSON (New Zeal and) said that she would bring M. Kol osov's
suggestion about the Youth Parlianment to the attention of the authorities, but
she was not sure that they would allow an even | arger delegation in the
future. New Zeal anders did, in fact, travel a great deal, both in a spirit of
expl oration and because nost of them had roots el sewhere. One of the main
thrusts of the social studies in schools was that children should acquire an
under standing of different peoples and cultures in the wider world with a view
to pronoting tol erance of others. The seven essential |earning areas

descri bed in paragraph 309 of the report helped to build the appropriate
attitudes in children.

The neeting rose at 6 p.m




